

BYLAWS
Of the
ELKO ARCHERY CLUB, INC.

ARTICLE I

Name

The name of this organization shall be Elko Archery Club, Inc. That said Club is a non-profit corporation, incorporated under laws of the State of Nevada, and an affiliate of the National Field Archery Association and the Nevada Bow Hunters Association.

ARTICLE II

To foster, expand, and perpetuate the practice of field archery.

To foster and perpetuate the sport of good fellowship among all archers within the State.

To encourage the use of the bow in hunting of all legal game and to protect, improve, and increase the privileges of the bow hunters.

To cooperate with the Federal and State governments, sportsmen, and conservationist organizations in the propagation and conservation of game in its natural habitat.

To conduct a continuous, educational program designed to acquaint the public with the bow and its use as a practical and humane weapon, suitable under proper regulations for the hunting of all game animals and birds on the American continent.

ARTICLE III

Membership and Dues

Section 1: Any adult person shall be eligible for membership. To become a member said adult shall apply either orally or by written application to the Board of Directors for approval for membership and upon payment of one year's dues and target fees set by the Board of Directors; the Secretary shall issue the applicant a Membership Card. He or she shall become a member and be entitled to all of the privileges of membership and also subject to the responsibilities, which may be incurred. If at any time the officers of the Club request a member to show his Membership Card, he or she must do so.

Section 2: If the Elko Archery Club, Inc. wishes to join another archery organization or club, it will be decided by a mail-in ballot to the general membership.

Section 3: Lifetime membership and target fees will be honored and the fee thereafter will be set by the Board of Directors.

Section 4: The Board of Directors and by majority vote may suspend or expel any member who, in their opinion, is guilty of acts unbecoming a sportsman. They shall also file minutes of their action, decisions, and suggestions with the secretaries of the NFAA and NBHA.

Section 5: Any member convicted of a violation of any State or Federal game law shall be automatically expelled from the Elko Archery Club, Inc., but may be reinstated only upon approval of the Board of Directors.

Section 6: A six-month membership in the Elko Archery Club, Inc. is required to be able to vote. Also, a member must have reached his or her eighteenth birthday.

Section 7: Junior membership dues shall be set by the Board of Directors. A junior member is a person under eighteen years of age.

Section 8: An annual Membership dues increase can be no more than \$5 per year and the dues change cannot be cumulative if the increase has not happened over multiple years. The annual dues do not have to be increased each year unless the current board feels there is a need for the increase.

ARTICLE IV Board of Directors

Section 1: The Board of Directors of this Club shall consist of six (6) adult members elected by the general membership.

Section 2: That the six (6) Board of Directors of the Elko Archery Club, Inc. shall be President, Vice President, Secretary/Treasurer, and three Directors, and serve for one year.

Section 3: The first Board of Directors shall consist of the following members, who shall serve for the following terms, commencing with the balance of 1966 and the calendar year 1967, to wit:

Three-Year Directors

Rod Knapp
K.J. Mize

Two-Year Directors

Paul Messerly
Art Montrose

One-Year Directors

Larry Dodge
Denny Carlson

Section 4: Said officers shall be elected annually on the calendar year to serve for one year and shall be elected from the general membership.

The current year's Board of Directors shall be listed in the by-laws annually.

Officers are as follows for year 2025:

President:	Justin Hardy
Vice President:	John Bottari
Secretary/Treasurer:	Joan Bottari
Board Members:	Jim Hill
	Joe Willis
	Trystan Jackson

Section 5: The President shall serve as the chairman of the Board of Directors, the Vice-President shall serve as the vice-chairman, and the Secretary/Treasurer shall serve as the secretary of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE V

Elections

Section 1: Elections will be held annually and announced at the regular meeting in September.

Section 2: Nominations for the offices to be elected shall be made by the general membership at a Club meeting, by email or by mailing in nominations for each office from July 1 to July 20 of each year.

Section 3: Each nominee must be a member in good standing (six-month membership and eighteen years of age) with the right to vote himself/herself.

Section 4: The Secretary/Treasurer position can be held by more than one individual if no one person is willing to take both offices. The Secretary/Treasurer may be appointed by the Board of Directors if no one is running for this office and is not required to be a Club member; however, if appointed Secretary or Treasurer is not a club member; he/she will not be a voting member of the Board of Directors.

Section 5: Voting for directors and officers shall be by secret ballot, except in cases where only one member is nominated for office or offices to be filled in which case the Secretary may be instructed to cast a unanimous vote for that candidate or candidates.

Section 6: The election will be mail-in only. No ballots will be accepted after September 1st. The ballots will be counted at the regular club meeting in September.

Section 7: The candidate receiving a majority votes cast at the election shall be deemed duly elected to office. If there are more than two candidates for an office, and none receives a majority, the two candidates receiving the highest number of votes shall be voted upon in a run-off election.

ARTICLE VI

Meetings

Section 1: General membership meetings will be held on the second Thursday of each month. Each year the new officers may change the meeting date if desired.

Section 2: Special membership meetings may be called by the President upon giving five days written notice to the members.

Section 3: Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held before each general membership meeting, and after the general membership meeting, if necessary.

Section 4: Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chairman or any three members by giving the other members two days written notice or phoning two days in advance of the time and place of the such special meeting and must state the matter to be considered.

Section 5: Four (4) members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

Section 6: The Board of Directors shall act for the Club and transact business when they are duly assembled at a regular or special meeting. Any action of a majority of the Officers, although not at a regularly called meeting, if assented to in writing by all of the other members of the Board of Directors, shall always be as valid and effective in all respects as if passed by the Board of Directors in regular meeting.

ARTICLE VII

Compensation

Section 1: The Board of Directors will be exempt from paying dues.

Section 2: The Secretary/Treasurer may be paid a salary for his/her services as such officer for his/her services in taking and preparing the minutes of the meetings of the general membership and of the Board of Directors, at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VIII

Duties of Officers

Section 1: President – It shall be the duty of the President to preside at all meetings, serve as chairman of the Board of Directors and serve as an ex-officio member of each committee. Furthermore, he shall keep posted with all subjects concerning archery and fish and wildlife, keep the meetings in an orderly manner, appoint all committees, and be governed by the motions of the Club. He shall sign and execute all bonds, deeds, agreements, or other instruments in writing on behalf of the Club.

Section 2: Vice President – It shall be the duty of the Vice-President to serve as the presiding officer in the absence of the President.

Section 3: Secretary/Treasurer – It shall be the duty of the secretary/treasurer to keep a true and accurate record of all proceedings during business sessions of the Club and Board of Directors,

answer all correspondence directed to the Club and receive and keep an account of all moneys received by the Club. The Secretary/Treasurer shall draw all checks in payment of bills or debts against the Club, which said checks shall be counter-signed by the President or by the Vice-President in the absence of the President, and shall attest to the signature of the President on all written instruments executed on behalf of the Club.

Section 4: Directors – It shall be the duty of the Directors to formulate for approval of the membership all policies of the Club and relieve the pressure of minor details at the regular Club meetings by auditing and approving for payment all bills against the Club. It shall be the duty of the Board to represent the Club in all matters before the public or its duly elected officials, except in cases where a special committee has been appointed for this purpose. It shall also be the duty of the Board to act for the Club in all emergencies needing immediate attention or in an inopportune time to call a special meeting.

ARTICLE IX:

Range Captain

Section 1: The Range Captain is an appointed position and may be paid for these services from March through October, or longer if necessary.

Section 2: The Board of Directors will vote on the amount to be paid and if the position is to be paid in a particular year.

ARTICLE X

Committees

Section 1: There shall be such committees as designated by the Board of Directors and appointed by the President.

Section 2: A committee will be formed by November 1 of each year for the Bowhunter Classic Shoot to be held the following year. Committee members will create a flyer for marketing of the shoot by the general membership meeting and/or year-end banquet held in January.

ARTICLE XI

Amend Bylaws

The bylaws may be amended by a 2/3 vote of the members present at two successive regular membership meetings.

ARTICLE XII

Financial Obligations

No financial obligation or expenditure shall be approved unless there be sufficient funds in the treasury to pay same. In other words, no proposed project shall be undertaken on a credit basis.

ARTICLE XIII

Depository

The Board of Directors shall designate one or more banks as depositories of the corporate funds, and said funds shall be deposited in said depositories, and no others by the Secretary/Treasurer.

ARTICLE XIV

Corporate Seal

The Club may adopt a corporate seal, which shall be affixed to all written instruments executed by the President, and attested by the Secretary/Treasurer, on behalf of the Club.

ARTICLE XV

Club Shoot Awards

The club may issue annual club shoot end of year awards to current members only of trophies or other items, such as T-shirts or sweatshirts with the club logo monogrammed on the front with the year of the award, the shooting class, and the name of the winning archer. Choice of awards will be up to the board of directors to decide each year.

Scoring for end of year awards:

We take the shooter's four best shoots of the year in their class. All other scores will be discarded for this award.

If a shooter shoots in more than one class during the year, he or she must declare which class they are competing in for awards before the years' end. The club secretary will tabulate the points for the awards and order the awards in time for the annual club banquet.

Points are awarded as follows:

1st place = 4 points

2nd place = 3 points

3rd place = 2 points

0 place = 1 point (for attending)

Maximum score is 16 points

If there is a tie in any class, we will issue both shooters the same award.

The board of directors will determine the date and time and place of the awards banquet during the December Club meeting and will inform all club members of the time and date.